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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To The Members of Max Asset Services Limited

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Max Asset Services Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, of its profit and total comprehensive income (comprising profit and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the director’'s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon. The director’s report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is t ead the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing;,»a,vc%gl_L eEher the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial staf n%q’;ﬁ? t’@u‘l‘ﬂ Rnowledge
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When we read the director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appréprlaLe to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material mlssgatement resuittng from fraud is higher than for one-
resulting from error, as fraud may rlnyowe colly: forg_ery, intentional omissions,




misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events.or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we repo.rt, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

€. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this-Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In oun'o;":h:ffs;ior'.f," -_'_li'h'é-éfbresald Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”; and

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the company for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position;

“ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“"Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or-provide’any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate B'en.éfi"ciéﬁi@.&;: "
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and
hence provisions of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has

Membership No. 440343
For and on behalf of

used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made
using privileged/ administrative access rights, as described in note 36(viii)
to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of other accounting software wherever audit log was enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year(s) has not been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated
in Note 36(viii) to the financial statements.
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to .in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025, we report that:

1. In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (i) As the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative detail and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant & equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company
does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder, if so. Hence no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company.

2. (a) The inventory has been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were not material.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions during any point of time of the year.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e)
and 3(iii)(f) are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities given-ii: rc.sp'ect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are appllcable to the Company Accordingly clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company Q/



5. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the year.

6. According to the information and explanation given to us, we are informed that the
maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any
other statutory dues, as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company, there is no due in respect of income tax, goods and service tax and duty of
customs as on 315t March, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of disputes.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and
records examined by us, the term loans taken during the year have been applied for the
purposes for which those were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

10.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) and term loan during the year Accordingly, clause 3(x) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotiment: or placément of shares during the
a0 b



year.

11.(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been notices or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

12. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

13. According to the information and explanation given by the management, all transaction with
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to financial Statement, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 are not applicable to the
company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) in so far as it relates to section 177 of
the Act is not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

14.1In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies
Act 2013.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

16.(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

() In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group
has one CIC which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

17. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the year under audit and
has incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

18.There has been the resignation of the statutory audltors clurlng the year and no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing audltors =



19,

20.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act 2013 does not apply to the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.
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“"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAX ASSET SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial - Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Max Asset
Services Limited (“the Company”)-as: of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and -perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting. _~<. KE o




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or ‘that the degree of compliance with the policies ‘or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 627.08 711.03
Investment Property 4 220.26 25043
Other Intangible assets 5 0.01 0.01
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(i) = -
(ii) Trade receivables 6(ii) 355.98 627.18
(iii) Other financial assets 6(iii) 723.41 737.26
Deferred tax assets 7 411.05 221.37
Other non current assets 8 6.87 118.06
2,344.66 2,665.34
Current assets
Inventories 9 21.83 12.17
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10(i) 1,048.57 711.61
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10(ii) 180.28 47.39
(iii) Other financial assets 10(iii) 311.22 298.78
Other current assets 11 106.59 243 83
1,668.49 1,313.78
TOTAL ASSETS 4,013.15 3,979.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 (i) 205.00 205.00
Other equity 12 (ii) (1,951.86) (2,108 49)
Total equity (1,746.86) (1,903.49)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 16.14 6.34
(ii) Lease Liabilities 13(i) 692.29 815.82
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13(ii) 1,658 64 1,420.11
Provisions 14 63.38 29.76
2,430.45 2,272.03
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15(i) 757.89 1,892.27
(ii) Lease Liabilities 15(ii) 123,53 110.72
(iii) Trade payables 15(iii)
(2) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 94.45 24.02
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 2,144.98 1,239.57
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 15(iv) 123.71 82,97
Other current liabilities 16 71.78 121.14
Provisions 17 1321 139 89
3,329.55 3,610.58
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,760.00 5,882.61
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,013.15 3,979.12
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3.37
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements Max Asset Services Limited
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(R in Laes)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
INCOME
Revenue from operations 18 4,658.28 3,095.60
Other income 19 254.71 296.85
Total income 4,912,99 3,392.45
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost 20 2112 40.51
Employee benefits expenses 21 527.04 404.33
Finance costs 22 292.91 358.83
Depreciation and amortization expenses 23 162.90 217.58
Other expenses 24 3,708 91 2,204,93
Total expenses 4,712.88 3.226.18
Profit/(loss) before P 1 items and fax 200.11 166.27
Exceptional item 24(1) = 4,445 12
Profit/(Loss) before tax 200.11 (4.278.85)
Tax expenses
- Current tax 241.49 13937
- Tax Relating to previous year 549 -
- Deferred tax (190.86) 71.67
Total tax expense 56.12 217.04
Profit/(loss) after tax 143.99 (4,495.89)
Other comprehensive Income/(loss) 25
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss (1.60) (1.58)
Income tax effect 0.40 0.40
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax (1.20) (1.18)
Total comprehensive inoome/(loss) for the year, net of tax 142,79 (4,497.07)
Earningg per equity share (Nominal Value of share Rs.10/) 26
Basic (Rs) 7,02 (219.31)
Diluted (Rs.) 7.02 (219.31)
y of significant ing policies 2
Other notes on accounis 3-37
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Asset Services Limited
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements -
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Cash flow from operating actlvities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 200.11 (4,278 85)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 162.90 217.58
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit (113.37) (73.76)
Employee Stock Option Expense 13.84 6.99
Interest income (6.02) (5.59)
Liabilities no longer required written back - (6.93)
Exceptional Items - 4,445.12
Profit on derecognition of Right of Use Asset - (73.37)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 292.67 358.84
Operating profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 550.13 590.02
Workling capital adjustments;
Increase in other current finanacial liabilities 15411 217.45
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments 7148 13401
Increase in other non current finanacial assets 13.85 (339.19)
Increase in other non current finanacial liabilities 14235 496 55
Increase in inventories (9.66) 240
(Decrease) / increase in other current liability (49.36) 80.38
Increase in other current financial assets (1243) (298 78)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 490.87 220,28
Cash generated from operations 1,351.33 1,103.11
Income tex paid (262,78) (6.00)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 1,088.55 1,097.11
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets, CWIP (48.78) (41 22)
and capital advances, Investment Property)
Interest received 6.02 559
Net cash flows used in investing activities @2.77) (35.63)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of Long term/ Short term borrowings (631.09) (703.98)
Repayment of Lease Liability (206.40) -
Interest paid (10081) (358 83)
Employee Stock Option - -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2539 -
Net cash flows from financing activities (912.91) (1,062.81)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 132.89 (133)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 47.39 48.72
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 180.28 4739
Components of cagh and cash equivalents :-

Asat As at

Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2025
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 17939 46,14
Cash on hand 0.89 1.25

lﬂ]_.zs 47.39
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

a) Equity share capital
Particulars Nos, (Rs. in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2023 20,50,000 205.00
Add: Equity share issued during the year (refer note 12) = -
As at March 31, 2024 20,50,000 205.00
Add: Equity share issued during the year (refer note 12) & -
As at March 31, 2025 20,50,000 205.00
h) Other equity (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Reserves & surplus | Employee stock Compulsorily Other Total equity

Retained earnings options Convertible comprehensive

Debentures income

As at March 31, 2023 (2,090.43) 11.30 4,446.00 14.71 2,381.58
Profit/(Loss) for the year (4,495.89) - - - (4,495.89)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - (1.18) (1.18)
Addition during the year - 6.99 - - 6.99
As at March 31, 2024 (6,586.32) 18.29 4,446.00 13.54 (2,108.49)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 143.99 - - - 143.99
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - (1.20) (1.20)
Addition during the year - 13.84 - - 13.84
As at March 31, 2025 (6,442.33) 32.13 4,446.00 12.34 (1,951.86)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-37

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements Minx
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PL.C045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1

2,

2.2

C.

Corporate Informalion

Max Assel Services Limited (the Company) is a p: i d under Companies Act, 2013 and incorporated on 23rd August 2016, The Company engaged in the busi of Facilily M:
Registered oﬂice of the Company is located at 419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagai, Village Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur, N: hehar, Punjab - 144533
The fi i were authorised for issue in d: with a resolution of the d on 21st May 2025

Material Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
These separate financial stalement of the Company have been din rd with Indian A ing Standards (IND AS) notified under the C

p (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to lime) and presentation requirements of division I of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 (Ind AS Compliant Schedule II), as applicable fo these separate financial statement

The fi ial have been prepared on accrual basis and historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value
(i) Certain financial assels and liabilitics that arc measured at fair valve
Financial Statement are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) excepl when othenwise staled

Summary of significant accounfing policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabililies in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
(i) Expected 1o be realized or intended to be sold or d in normal operating cycle

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All othar assels are clissificd & non-cunent

A liability is current when:

(i) It is expecled to be setiled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) It is due 1o settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax aceots and liabilitios ore olassified 0s non-current osscts and liabilitics

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

Property, Plant and Equipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), all assels were camied in the Balance Sheet at cost, less lated d iation and lated impai losses, if any. On the date of transition to IND AS,
the Company has applied exemption of Ind AS 101 10 continue carrying value of ali property, plant and eq\upmcn( as at the date of transition as its deemed cost

Propetty, Plant and equipment mcludmg capital work in progtess are staled al cosl, less lated d and laled impai losses, if any The cost comprises of purchase price, laxes,
dulies, freight and other incid p directly attrit le and related to isition and installati ofthc d assets and are ﬁmher adjusted by the amount of CENVAT credit and VAT credit
availed wherever epplicable. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the camrying amount of the plant and equip as a repl ifthe ition criteria are satisfied All other repair and meaintenance costs

are recognized in profit or loss as incurred

An item of property, plant and equij and any significant part initially disd d upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on d of the assel (calculated as the diffe between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognized

The identifies and d ines cost of each p / part of the asset separalely, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is
ma(enully dlﬂ‘erent from that of the remaining asset

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equi under installation / under develop as at the balance sheet date

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equi are reviewed at each fi ial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Depreciation on property, plant and ¢quipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assels estimated by management and in the manner prescribed in Schedule T
of the Companies Act 2013 The useful life is as follows:

Assels Useful lives eslimated by the management (years)
Fumiture and fixtures 10 Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Computers 3 Years

Investment property -




o
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gnition and inilial

prop are properties held to eam rentals or for capilal ap iation or both. I ies are d initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction costs The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capilalizalion crileria are met and directly atiributable cost ofbnngmg the assel to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates arc
deducted in amiving at the purchase pricc. When significant parts of the i property arc required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciales them separalely based on their specific useful
lives

Property held under lease is classified as investment property “hen itis held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in

or administrative functions. Subseqy costs arc included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable thal future ic benefits
assoclated with the item will flow to the Group All other repair and mai cosls are ised in of profit and loss as incurred The cost includes lhe cost of replacing parts and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognilion criteria are met. When significant parts of the i property arg required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives, All other repair and mai costs are ised in profit or loss as incurred

De-mcognilion
In ies are d ised cither when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal The
difference hctwcen the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition

Intangible assets

1 ible assets acquired sep ly are d on mmal ition at cos!. Following initial ition, i ible assets are carmicd at cost less lated ization and lated imp

losses, if any. Intemnally di ibl ludi lized develop cosl, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
expendilure is incurred. Casl comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset ta its working condition for its inlended use

The useful lives of inlangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finile lives arc amortized over their useful ic lives and d for impai whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired The amortization period and the amortization method for an mlznglblc asset with a finite useful life is reviewed al least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or Lhe pected pattem of ion of fulure ic benefits embedied in the asset is d for by changing the ization period or method, as
appropriate and are treated as changes in g The izalion expense on § ible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, bul are tesled for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The of indefinile life is reviewed

annually to determine whether the indefinile life conlinugs to be supportable. Ifnot. the change in useful lif: from indefinite to finite is made on a prospeclive basis

Gains or losses anising from disposal of the i
profil and loss when the assets are disposed off.

assets are d as the diffe between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recoghized in the statement of

Intangible assets with finile usefu! life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life of 3-6 years

Impairment of non financial assets
The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
the asset's, ble amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generaling unit’s (CGU) net fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset docs not generate cash inflows that ar¢ largely independent of those from other sssets or groups of assets Where the carrying amount of asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is writlen down to its ble amount. In ing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows arc discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate (hat reflects curnent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel, In determining net fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
trncaolions are taken into nccount, if available. If no such t ions can be identified, an appropiiate valualion model is used. These caleulations are b d by valuali Itiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded companies or olher available fair value indi

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which ar: prepared ly for each of the Company’s cash-generaling units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forccast catculations are generally iug 4 perivd”of five years. For the remaining economic life of the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU), a long lerm growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company exlrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be juslified In this case, the growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth

rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used

After impaiment, deprecialion is provide on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining economic lifc

An assessments is made at cach reporting dale as to whether there is any indicalion that previously gnized impai losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1f such indication exists, the
Company eslimates the asset’s or cash ing unil's ble amount. A previously ized impai loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the fast impairment loss was recogmzed The revcrsal is llmned so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been d ined, net of deprecialion, had no impai loss been gnized for the asset in prior years Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the

assel is carmied at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

Financial Instruments
A financial instrumen is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

(i) Financial assets

The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories =

= Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)
- Those measured al amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profil or loss, transaction costs thal are¢ altributable to the acquisition of the

fi I asset. Purch or sales of fi ial assets that require delivery of assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the markel place (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.¢,, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

Subsequent measurement

For purp of subseq fi ial assels are ¢l d in two

(i) Debt instruments at amortized cost

(i) Debl i and equity i at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt i ' is d at the ized cost if both the following condilions are met:

(i) Business model test : The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collucting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the i prior to its | maturity to

released its fair value change), and

(ii) Cash flow characteristics test : Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates (o cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP]) on the principal amount oulstanding




This category is the most relevant to the Company. After lnmal such fi ial assels are subseq ly d at ized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amonrtized cost

is calculated by taking into account any di t or p on isition and fees or costs (hat are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discount the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument ot a shoner period, where appmpmte to the gross carrymg amoum of financial assets. When calculating the effective interest rate the company eslimate the
expected cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the fi ial The EIR is included in finance income in the profit or loss The losses arising from impaimment are

recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to lrade and other receivables

Debt insiruments at Fair value through proﬁt and loss

FVTPL is a residual ca(cgory for fi ial Any fi ial i , which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL, A gain or loss on a Debt
that is subsequently d at FVTPL and is not a patt of a hedging relationship is gnized in of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other

gains or Josses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i € . removed from the Company’s statement of financial position)
when:

-the rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

-the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through”
arrangemenl and either;

(a) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or

(b) the Company has retained the contractual right to reveive the vash Mows ol the Guancial assel, bul assumes a conbiactual obligation 1o pay the casl flows W one o1 woIE 1ecipients

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assels In such cases, Lhe financial asset
is derecognized. Where the entity has nol lransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the hip of the fi ial assets, Lhe fi ial asset is not derecognized

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of hip of the fi ial asset, the fi ial assel is d ized if the Company has not
retained control of lhe financial asset. Where the Company relains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the exlent of conlinuing involvement in the financial asset

Inventories

Invenlories comprise completed units for sale and property under construction (Work in progress):

(A) Completed Unsold inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by including cost of land, malerials, services and related overheads

(B) Work in progress is valued at cost Cosl comprises value of land (including devel rights), ials, services and other overheads relaled 1o projects under construction

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for and ition of impai loss on the following fi ial asset and credit risk exposur:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),;

The Companv follows lified approach” for gnition of impai loss allowance on trade receivables, Under the simplified approach, the Company does not !mck changes in credit risk, Rather, it
i lo!s Il based on lifctime ECLs at ¢ach repuiting Jate, 1ight Gon its initial secognition. e Cumpany uses a provisivu matis to J i i Tuss all ot the

portfolio of tradc receivables, The provision matrix is based on its histarically ohserved defaull rates aver the expected life of irade receivahle and is adjusted far fnrwanrl looking estimates At every

reporting date, the historical observed default rales are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analyzed

For ition of impai loss on other fi ial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used If, in subsequent period, credil qualily of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to izi i loss all based on 12- months ECL

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to d in¢ impai loss all on portfolio of trade ivables The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default

rales over Lhe expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for fomard- looking esti At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed

Reclassification of financial assels

The Company d i lassi ion of fi ial assets and liabilities on inilial ition. Afier initial recognilion, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instrumens, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent The Company's senior management delermines change in the business model as a result of external or intemal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to extemal parlies. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an aclivily that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification p vely from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model
The Company does not reslate any previously recognized gams losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial ition as fi ial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of direcily attributable transaction costs The
Company financial liabilitics include loans and borrowings including bank overdrafl, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company priar to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of
recognilion. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using EIR method

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair valug through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term_ Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Financial liabilities designated upon initial gnilion at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designaled as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI These gains/ loss are nol subsequently (ransferred to profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as al fair value through profit and loss

Loans and borrowings




Je

Borrowings are initially recognised al fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial gnition, interest-bearing loans and b ings are sub 1 d al ised cost using the EIR
method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process Amomscd cost is calculated by faking into account any
di orp on acquisition and fees or costs that ar¢ an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortizalion is included as finance costs in the stalement of profit and loss

Financial guarantee contracls

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment

when due in accordance with the !crms ofa debt i Financial g are gnised inilially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs thal are directly atiributable to the
of the Sub ly, the Jiability is measured at thc higher of the amount of loss all d ined as per impai i of IND AS 109 and the amounl recognised less

cumulative amortization

Derecognition

A financial liability is d gnised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are sub ially modified, such an exch or medication is treated as the derecognition of Lhe original liability and the recognition of a new
liability The difference in the respective carmying is recognised in the of profit and loss

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is seported in the balance sheet if there is & currenily enforceable legal right Lo offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
setile on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably d. The following specific
met before revenue is recoghized:

gnition criteria must also be

(i} Revenue is recognised over time if either of the following conditions is met:

a Buyers take all the benefits of the praperty as rcal estate developers construct the property

b. Buyers obtain physical possession of the property

¢ The property unit to be delivered is specified in the contracl and real estate entity does not have an altemnative use of the unit; the buyer does not have the discretion to terminate the contract and the entity
has right to payment for work completed to date

In case nong of thesc condilions is met, revenue would be recognised at a point in time when the control of the property is passed on Lo the customer.

(ii) Revenue from shared services

Revenue from shared services is recagnized over the period of contract, as and when services are rendered

(iii) Revenue from project t Il / d

Revenue from project Itancy / d is gnized as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered
(iv) Gain on sale of investments

On disposal of an i , the diffk b the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is recognised to the profit and loss statement

(v) Interest and direct expenditure attributable to specific projects are capitalized in the cost of project, other interest and indirect costs are treated as ‘Period Cost” and charged to Profit & Loss account in
(vi} All other i and di are d for on accrual basis

Taxes
Current income Lax
Current income lax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the income

putalion and discl dards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substanlively enacted, at the reporfing dale
Current income tax relating 10 items recognized outside profit or loss is 1ecognized outside profit ot Toss (either in other cumpiehensive income o1 in eyuity). Cullent Lax items are recognized in conelation
to the ullderlylng transaction either in OCI or dircclly in equlty Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax lalions are subject
1o interp and establishes provisions where approp

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying for fi ial i at the reporting date

P B purp

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporay differences

Deferred tax assels are ized for all deductibl, porary differcnces, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses Deferred tax assets are recognized Lo the extent that il is
probable that 1axable profit wilt be available against which the deductibl porary difft and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized Lo the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profils will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred lax assels and liabilitics are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is setiled, based on lax rates (and tax laws) thal have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside the statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity) Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OClI or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable ¢ntity and
the same taxation authority

The Company izes MAT credit available as an assel only to the extent thal there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i, the period for
which MAT credil is allowed to be carried forward The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlemenl” asset at each reporting date and writes down the assct to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period

Borrewing cosls

Bormrowing costs directly attributable to the isiti ion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. B ing cost also includ h diff: to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Leases

The Company applies a single ition and pproach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease

payments and right-of-us¢ assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception datc as a finance lease or an operaling lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease,




Finance leases are capitalized at the of the lease at the inceplion date at fair value of the leased property or, if lower, al the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apporlioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in
the stalement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable lo qualifying assets. in which casc they are capilalized in accordance wilh the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the assel. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,

Operating lease pay are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn unless the payment are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the losses in expected inflationary cost increase

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease lerms. Initial direct costs incurred in ncgotiating and armanging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assel and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Cantingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed

Provision and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligalion (legal or ive) as a result of past event, il is pmbable thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required Lo settle the obligation and a rellable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not di d to their present value and are determined based on the best estimale
required to scttle the obligation at the rep g date. These esli are reviewed at each rep g date and adjusted to reflect the current best eslimates

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation thal arises from past ¢vents whose exi will be confimed by the or of one or more uncerain future events beyond the control
of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discl its exi in the fi ial
statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

P A i liabilities i assels and i are revi d at each balance sheet date

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund

The Company ibuted to employ provident fund benefils through a trust "Max Financial Services Limited Provident Fund Trust" managed by Max Financial Services Limited (erst\vhile Max India
Limited) whereby d ined at a fixed p age of basic salaries of the employeus are deposited to the trust every month, The benefit vests upon of the employ The interest
rate payable by the trust to the beneficiaries every year is notified b) lhe guvemmenl and the Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the retum from the investments of the
trust and the notified interest rate. The Company has obtained 10 d ine the shortfall, if any, as at the Balance Sheel date

Gratuity

Grutuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided fot ou e basis of un actuatial valualion on projected unit eredit method made al the end of ¢ach Gnancial year

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the ¢ffect of Lhe asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retum on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corrsponding debil or credit to retained vamings through OCI in the
period in which they occur R are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rale to the net defined benefit (liabilities/assets). The Company recognized the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee
benefit expenses in statement of profit and loss

(i} Service cost comprising current service cost, past service cosl, gain & loss on curtailments and non routine settlements
(ii) Net interest expenses or income

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is trealed as short-term employse benefit The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional

amount that it it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitl that has lated at the reporting date

The Company treats accumulated leave expecled Lo be carried forward beyond twelve months, as tong term employee benefit for purp Such long-t: d ab are provided

for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end | Actuarial gaing/l are i diately taken to the of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company

presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheel, 1o the exient it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date, Where Company has the
ditional legal and I right to defer the settlement for a petiod 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including hon monclary benefits that arc expected to be seltled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service

are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the Liabilities are settled the liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheel

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Earning per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares ding, without a ponding change in

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of all potential
equity shares

Foreign currencies

Items included in the fi ial are d using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional y'). the Company’s financial stalements
are presented in Indian rupee (') which is also the Company’s functional and presentation currency

Foreigh currency ions ar ded on initial gnilion in the funclional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaclion

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date

Foreign currency monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the funclional currency spot rates of exchange al the reporting date

Non-mornetary items lhat are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial i Non- y items d at fair
value in a foreign currency are translaled using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined
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Exel diffe 1

arising on or of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which (hey arise with the ption of exch: diffe on gain or loss
arising on lation of y ilems d al fair value which is trealed in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on Ihe change in fair value of the item (i ¢, translation differences on items

whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo (ransfer a liability in an orderly transaclion between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an assel or a liability is d using the ptions that market ici would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market p p acl in their ic best
interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assel takes into account a markel participant's ability to | ic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is d or disclosed in the fi ial are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities

(i} Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowes! level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

(iii) Level 3 - Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are ized in the fi ial on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

This note summarises accouung pollcy for fan value Other fair value relaled disclosures are given in the relevant noles

- Discl for and p

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

- [nvestment in unquoted equity shares

- Financial instrumenis (including those carried at amortised cost)

Significant ing jud i and

In the process ofapplvmg the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the ized in the fi ial

(8) Determining fhe lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Comp ns lessee

The Company determines the Jease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if il is rvasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods

covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised

The Company has scveral lease that include ion and ination options. The Company applies jud, in ¢valuating whether il is bly certain whether or not to exercise the oplion

to renew or terminate the lease. Thal is, it considers all relgvant faclors that create an economic incentive for it (o excrcise either the rrnrwal ar termination After the commencement date, the Company

reassesses the lease lerm if there is a significant cvent or changc in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the oplion lo renew or to terminate (¢ g ,
of signifi leasehold imp or isation to the leased asset)

The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of plani and machinery with shorter non-cancellable period (i.c., three to five years). The Company typically exercises its option
to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on produclion if a replacement asset is not readily available. The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with longer non-
cancellable periods (i.e, 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these are nol reasonably certain to be exercised. Furthermore, the periods covered by tenmination options are included as
part of the lease term only when they are reasonably ceniain nol Lo be exercised

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered inlo commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio The Company has d ined, based on an evaluation of the turms and condlu ns of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the mini lease p not g to ly all of the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains subslantially all the risks and rewards incidental 10 hip of these properties and for the as operating leases

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and olher key sources of estimati inty at the rep g date, lhak have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its ptions and on p ilable when the fi ial were prepared Existing

circumstanices and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 1o market changes or circumstances ansmg beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur,

(a) Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i ¢ Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in

the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality mtcs and future pcnswn . Due to the ,' ity of the valuation, the underlying assumptiuns and

its long-term nalur, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in Lhese p All are reviewed at cach rep g date. In d ining the rate,

management considers the interest rates of long-term govemnment bonds with polaled maturily corresponding !o the expected duralion of the deﬁned benefit obligation The momhly rate is based on

publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries, Fulure salary i and pension i are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about the assumptions used, including a

sensitivity analysis

(b) Fair value of fi ial i

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markels, their fair value is measured using valualion
hni including the Di d Cash Flow (DCF) mode!. The inputs to these models are laken from observable markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required

Tud. i,

fair values include of inpuls such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility Changes in assumptions aboul Lhese factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments, The Company use Net asset value for valuation of investment in mutual fund

{¢c) Impamm:nt of Financial assets

The i isions of fi ial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expecled loss rates the Company uses judgement in making these assumplions and selecting the inpuls to
the |mpalrmen! calculauon based on Company's pasl history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

(d) Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesscs at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indicalion exisls, or when annual impairment lesling for an assel is required, the Company
estimates the assel's recoverable amount, An assets recoverable amounl is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair valuc less cost of disposal and its value in use, It is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset docs not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is wrillen down to its ble amount. In ing value in use, the estimated future cash flows arv discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such

dentified : 1

can be i an approp ion model is used These calculalions are b d by valuati {tiples, or other fair value indicators




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3 Property, plant and equipment (Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Office equipment Furniture and fixture Computers and data  Motor Car Total Right of Use Grand Total
processing units Assets*

Atcost
As at March 31, 2023 6.20 0.57 13.88 - 20.65 1,537.74 1,558.39
Additions 523 2284 2807 - 28.07
Disposals - 42727 427.27
As at March 31, 2024 6,20 0.57 19.11 22,84 48.72 1,110.47 1,159,19
Additions 096 11.10 672 48.78 - 4878
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2025 7.16 0.57 30.21 59.56 97.50 1,110.47 1,207.97
Depreciation - -
As at March 31, 2023 391 0.43 192 - 12,26 45,03 A87.29
Additions 053 007 %13 |83 6.56 171.52 178.08
Disposals . B7.20 §7.20
As at March 31, 2024 4.44 0.50 12.05 1.83 18.82 429,35 44817
Additions 0381 .05 485 5.008 1014 121.99 132.73
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2025 5.25 0.58 16,90 6.86 29.56 551.34 580.90

Net carrying amount > =
As at March 31, 2025 1,91 0.9_3_ 13.31 5_2.70 67.95 §50.13 627,08
As at March 31, 2024 1.76 0.08 . 2L 29,91 681,12 711.03




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs, in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3.(a) Right of Use Assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 681.12 1,192.71
Addition - -
Derecognition of Right to Use Assets - (340.17)
Depreciation (121.99) (171.42)
Balance at the closing of the year 559.13 681.12

The Company has lease contracls for buildings from related partics The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s fitle to the leased assets. The Company is
restricted from assigning or sub leasing the leased assels,

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the mov during the year:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Building Total
As at April 01, 2023 1,192.71 L192.711
Additions - o
Reclassified from prepaid expenses (340.17) (340.17)
Depreciation expense (171.42) (170L42)
As at March 31, 2024 681.12 681.12
Additions - =
Derecognition of Right to Use Asset - -
Depreciation expense (121.99) (121.99)
As at March 31, 2025 559.13 559.13

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Buildin Total
As at April 01, 2023 . 1,435.67 1,435.67
Additions - -
Accretion of interest 140.40 140.40
Payments (236 80) (236.80)
Derecognition of Lease Linbiliti (412,73) (412.73)
As at March 31, 2024 926,54 926.54
Additions = -
Accretion of interest 95.68 95.68
Payments (206.40) (206.40)
Derecognition of Lease Liabiliti - -
As at March 31, 2025 A15.82 815.82

(Rs, in Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Current lease lisbilities 123,53 110.72
Non-current lense liabilities 692.29 815.82
Total B15.82 926.54

The details regarding the maturity analysis of lease liabilities As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis:
(Rs. in Lacq)

Particulsrs As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within one year 206.40 206.40
After one year but not more than five years 637,03 690.99
More than five years - 29.15
Total 843.43 926.54

Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11%.
The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease
liabilities as and when they fall due

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 121.99 171.42
Interest expense on lease liabilities 95,68 140,40

Total amount recognised in profit or loss o -_Il'?_.t_'l‘? = 311.82




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4. Investment Property

(Rs in Lacs)
Work Well Suites Work Well Suites Total
Max House Okhla Max Tower

At cost
As at March 31, 2023 343.36 91.15 434.51
Additions - - -
Disposals - 91.15 91.15
As at March 31, 2024 343.36 - 343.36
Additions - - -
Disposals/Adjustment - - -
As at March 31, 2025 343.36 - 343.36
Amortization
As at March 31, 2023 62.46 - 62.46
Additions 3047 9.13 39.60
Disposals 9.13 9.13
As at March 31, 2024 92.93 - 92.93
Additions 30.17 30.17
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2025 123.10 - 123.10
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2025 220.26 - 220.26
As at March 31, 2024 250.43 - 250.43

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Max Asset Services Limited

CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

s.

Other Intangible assets

At cost

As at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2024
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2025

Amortization

As at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2024
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2025

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2025
As at March 31, 2024

(Rs in Lacs)
Computer software Total
0.26 0.26
0.26 0.26
0.26 0.26
0.25 0.25
0.25 0.25
0.25 0.25
0.01 0.01
0.01 0.01




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs, in Laes)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6. Non current financial assets
(i) Investments carried at cost
i) Investment in equity shares
Azure Hospitality Private Limited
100 (March 31, 2024 - 100) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 0.03 0.03
ii) Investment in prefernce shares
Azure Hospitality Private Limited
76,15,947, Series U (March 31, 2024 - 76,15,947) Prefernce shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,085.25 2,085.25
86,18,882, Series C (March 31, 2024 - 86,18,882) Prefernce shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,359.84 2,359.84
Less:  Provision for diminuition in value of investment (4,445.12) (4,445.12)
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments = =
Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - %
(ii) Trade receivables
Trade receivables - considered good 35598 627.18
355.98 627.18
Ageing of trade receivable O ling for following periods from due date of paynient
Undisputed Trade reccivables — considered goud Not Du¢ | < 6 months C m;:at:s-l 1-2 years > 3 years Total
As on March 31, 2025 355.98 - - - - 355.98
As on March 31, 2024 627.18 - - - - 627.18
(iif) Other financial assets (Valued at amortized cosf)
Performance Guarantee 723.41 737.26
723.41 7317.26
7. Deferred tax Assets
(1) Deferred tax liability
Fixed Assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting period
Gross deferred tax liability 28.50 298.64
(ii) Deferred tax assets 28.50 298.64
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 364.93 .
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 17.62 .
Unabsorbed depreciation - (77.27)
Gross deferred tax assets 382,55 (77.27)
Deferred Tax Asset 411.05 221.37
8. Other non current assets (unsecured considered good)
Prepaid expenses 6.87 -
Tax deducted at source recoverable - 118.06
6.87 118.06

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacy)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
9, Inventories
Consumable Materials 2183 12.17
21.83 12.17
10, Current financial asséts
(i) Trade receivabtes
Trade receivables - considered good 1,118.57 711.61
Trade receivables - considered doubtful 2 .
Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivable considered doubtful (70.00)
1,048.57 711.61
Trade Receivables ageing schedule ns nt March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
NotDue | <6 th 6 hs-1 year 1-2 years >3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 423,61 354.18 262.89 6147 16 43 1,118.57
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - -
Trude Receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Particulars 8] ding for following periods from due date of payment
NotDue | <6 th 6 months-1 year 1-2 vears >3 years Total
Undisputed Trade reccivables — lered good 270.56 365.79 46.00 2926 - 711.61
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - -
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 179.39 46.14
Cash in hand 0.89 1.25
180.28 47.39
(i) Other financial assets
(i) Receivable from related parties - 104.67
(it) Accrued Income 311.22 194,11
311.22 298.78
11. Other current assets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances to suppliers 48.40 52.98
Advances to employees 1.11 0.36
Prepaid expenses 3.65 6.67
Balance with statutory authorities 19.17 150.91
Security deposits 34.26 3291
106.59 243.83

[This space has been intentionally left blank]




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

12.

@

Share capital and other equity
Equity share capital
(Rsin Lacs)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Authorised share capital

50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each 500 00 50000
(Previous year 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each)

500.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up capital
20,50,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each 20500 205.00
(Previous year 20,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)
Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 205.00 205.00

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity shares No. of shares (Rs. In lnes) No. of shares (Ra. In Incx)
At the beginning of the year 20,50,000 205 00 20,50,000 205.00
Add: Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year ﬁ)hso,ooo 205 (01 20,50, 000 205.00

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if any, proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive ining assets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shatehuldsrs

d) Detals of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the Shareholder Murch 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
No. of shares % held No. of shares 6 hield

Equity shares of Ha. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited The Holding Company end Its Nominees 20,50,000 100.00% 20,50,000 100,00%

¢) Details of shares held by holding
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Its Nominees 20,50,000 100.00% 20,50,000 100.00%

) Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

) Shareholding of Promuters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at Promoter Name No. Of shares |5 of total shares % Change during the year
March 31, 2025  |Max Estates Limited The Holding C and Its Nomi 20,50,000 100 00% Nil
March 31,2024 |Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Tts Nominees 20,50,000 100 00% Nil

[This space has been intentionally lef¢ blank]
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12 (ii) Other equity

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) (refer note a below) 4,446.00 4,446.00
Employee stock options outstanding (refer note b below) 32.13 18.29
Retained eamings (refer note ¢ below) (6,442.33) (6,586.32)
Other equity (refer note d below) 12.34 13.54
(1,951.86) (2,108.49)
Notes:
a) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)
At the beginning of the year 4,446.00 4,446.00
Add: additions during the year - -
At the end of the year 4,446.00 4,446.00
b) Employee stock options outstanding (refer note 29.02)
At the beginning of the year 18.29 11,30
Add: expenses recognized during the year 13.84 6.99
32.13 18.29
¢) Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year (6,586.32) (2,090.43)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 143.99 . (449589
At the end of the year (6,442.33) (6,586.32)
d) Other equity
At the beginning of the year 13.54 1471
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (item of OCI) (1.20) (1.18)
At the end of the year 12.34 13.54

Nature and purpose of reserves:
a) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)

It denotes the fair value of compulsory convertible debentures issued to Max I. limited.

b) Employee stock options outstanding

The employee stock options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee Stock

Option plan with the holding company

¢) Retained earnings

Retained earnings - Retained eamings are profits of the company eamed till date less transferred to general reserve

d) Other equity
Loss from remeasurement on defined benefit plans,
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(Rs. in Laes)
Particulirs Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non current financial liabilities
13, (i) Lease linbilities
Lease Liability 692.29 815.82
692,29 §15.82
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Security Deposit 1,524 09 1,279.10
Deferred Finance Income (Security deposit) 134 55 141 01
1,658.64 1,420.11
14.  Provislons
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 29) 2619 13.66
Provision for Leave Encashment 37.19 16.10
63.33 29.76
15, Current financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
Current maturities of long term borrowings 12 40 401
Loan from related party ( Unsecured ) 745 49 1,888.26
757.89 11892.27
(ii) Lease liabilities
Lease Liability 12353 110,72
123.53 110.72
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises® 94 .45 24,02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises # 2,144 98 1,239 57

16.

17.

Trade Payables (incl. Capital Creditors) speing schedule as on March 31, 2025

2,239.43

1,263.59

Particulars (8] ling for following periods from due date of_payment
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years
(i) MSME 94.45 - - -
(ii) Others 2,023.55 11.11 110.33 -
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues -others " - - .
Trade Payables (incl, Capital Creditors) ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024
Particulars (4] ding for following periods from due date of pavment
<1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years
(i) MSME 24.02 - - =
(ii) Others 553.59 33439 172.68 178.91

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME

(iv) Disputed dues -others

* Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As per the Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro and small suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms agreed
with such suppliers Based on the information available with the Company, none of the creditors have confirmed the applicability of act on them Hence, the liability of the

interest and disclosure are not required to be di

# Trade payables include due to related parties Rs. 269 16 lacs  Previous Year ending March 31, 2024 - Rs. 123 88 lacs)

(iv) Other financial liabilities
Employees payable
Deferred finance income (Security Deposit)

Other current liabilities
Statutory dues
Advance received from customers

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)
Provision for taxation

23,90 -
9%.81 82.97
123.71 82.97
68 59 11215
319 8 99
71.78 121.14
0,63 040
021 012
12.37 13937
13.21 139.89
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(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
18.  Revenue from operations
Revenue from Rentals 4,658.28 3.095.60
4,658.28 3,095.60
19.  Other income
Interest received from income tax refund - 5.59
Interest Income 6.02 -
Other non-operating income 97.99 131.95
Liabilities no longer required written back - 6.93
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit 113.37 73.76
Profit on derecognition of Right of Use Asset - 73.37
Miscellaneous Income 37.33 5.25
254.71 296.85
20.  Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost
Inventories at beginning of year 12.17 14.57
Add: Purchases -
Construction Expenses 30.78 38.11
42,95 52,68
Less: inventory at (he end of year 21.83 12.17

Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost 21.12 40.51




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024
21. Employee benefits exp
Salaries, wages and bonus 448.88 366.60
Contribution to provident and other funds 20.05 18.31
Employee stock option scheme 13.84 7.00
Gratuity expense (refer note 29) 13.05 9.19
Staff welfare expenses 31.22 3.23
527.04 404.33
22. Finance costs
Interest on debts and borrowings 100.81 150.06
Interest on lease liability 95.68 140.40
Interest on Security Deposit Received 96.18 68.13
Bank charges 0.24 0.24
292.91 358.83
23. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3 and 4) 40.91 46.16
Depreciation on right to use asset (refer note 3a) 121.99 171.42
162.90 217.58
24, Other expense
Repairs and maintenance 0.05 0.66
Insurance 7.94) 498
Rates & Taxes 4.90 12.67
Legal and profcssional 77.52 5123
Travelling and conveyance 5.25 16.09
Facility Management
-Manpower 808.08 766.22
Electricity 576.50 340.31
-Repairs and maintenance 1,783.28 844,60
-Profit Distribution to Developer 171.63 -
Auditorium Running 65.40 44.93
Directors' Sitting fee 5.50 -
Provision for doubtful debt 69.93 -
Printing & Stationery. 0.06 0.06
Postage, Courier and Telephones 1.63 1.99
CSR Expenditure - 50.00
Donation 75.00 6.00
Business Promotion - 18.18
Recruitment Expenses 4.07 721
Sales & Marketing Expenses - 5.20
Co-Working expenses 52.17 33.50
Miscellaneous expenses - 110
3,708.91 2.204.93
24(i) Provision for diminuition in velue of investment - 4.445.12
- 4.445.12
Payment to auditor (included in legal and professional fee)
As auditor:
Audit fee 0.50 0.50
Other services (certification fees) 0.50 0.40
1.00 0.90
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25, Other comprehensive income

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (1.60) (1.58)
Income tax effect 0.40 0,40
(1.20) (1.18)
26. Earnings Per Share
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Basic EPS
Profit/(loss) after tax (Rs. in Lacs) 143.99 (4,495.89)
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereon E -
Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic EPS 143,99 (4,495.89)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 20,50,000 20,50,000
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 7.02 (219.31)
Dilutive EPS
Profit/(loss) after tex (Rs. in Lacs) 143.99 (4,495.89)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for dilutive 20,50,000 20,50,000
earnings per share (Nos)*
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 7.02 (219.31)
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27. Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

Profit and loss section

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current income tax :

Current tax 246,98 139.37

MAT credit entitlement - -

Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (190.86) 77.67

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 56.12 217.04

OCI section :

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the period :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income tax charge/(credit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 1.58

Income tax charged to OCI

160
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28. Commitments and contingencies
a) Other commitments

(Rs, in lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not accounted for
Less: Capital advances
Net commitments

b) Contingent Liability

Nil

Nil
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29,

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under Gratuity Plan, every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on

departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service,

(Rs. in lacs)
As at As at
a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1377 823
Current service cost 11.23 851
Interest expense 0.98 0.68
Benefit paid (1.19) (523)
Acquisition adjustment - -
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.81 0.40
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.79 1.18
Defined benefit obligation at year end 26.40 13.77
b) Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year iz =
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer contribution - =
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income = e
Fair value of plan assets at year end - =
) Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognized in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation 26.40 13.77
Amount recognized in balance sheet- asset / (liability) (26.40) (13.77
d) Net defined benefit expense (recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the year )
Current service cost 11.23 8.51
Past service cost - -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 098 0.68
Expected return on plan assets
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 12.21 9.19
(€) Remeasurment (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.81 0.40
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.79 1.18
Recognised in other comprehensive income 1.60 1.58
f) Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds 0% 0%
g)  Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligati
Assumption particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Discount rate 6.87% 7.09%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%
For the year ended For the year ended
b) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Discount rate
Increase by 0.50% (2.02) (1.01)
Decrease by 0 50% 223 111
Salary growth rate
Increase by 0.50% 2.16 108
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Decrease by 0.50% 197 (0.99)

Attrition rate
Increase by 0.50%
Decrease by 0.50%

i) The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 17.25 Years (March 31, 2024 : 16.22 years)

j) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

k) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations

1) The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year,

Leave Encashment (unfunded)
The Company recognises the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial valuation.
The expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the year

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Liability at the beginning of the year 20.55 11.03
Benefits paid during the year (1.43) (4.62)
Provided during the year 18.69 14,14

Liabtlity at the end of the year 37.81 20.55
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30,

31

31.01

Segment reporting
The Company is a one seg pany in the busi of Facility Manag, All its operations are Jocated in India , accordingly, the Company
views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting’.

Financial instruments

The comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories that are not measured at fair value are as follows:
{Rs, in Lacs)

Category Carrying value Fair Value
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024| March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

1) Financial asset at amortized cost

Trade receivables 1,404.55 1,338.79 1,404.55 1,338.79
Cash and cash equivalents 180.28 4739 180.28 4739
Other financial assets 1,034 63 1,036 04 1,034.63 1,036.04

2) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non current & current

Bormowings 774.03 1,898.61 774.03 1,898 61
Lease Liabilities 815.82 926.53 815.82 926 53
Other financial liabilities 1,782.35 1,503.08 1,782.35 1,503.08
Trade payables 2,239.43 1,263.59 2,239.43 1,263.59

3) Financial asset carried at fair value through statement of|
profit & loss
Investments - - - =

The Company assessed (hat trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and advances to related parties, interest
receivable, trade payables, capital creditors are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
heftween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and asswmptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific
country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation,
allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other noncurrent financial liabilities are estimated
by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, The valuation
requires managemen to use observable and unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant observable and unobservable inputs are
disclosed in the table below, M t regularly a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant observable and
unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and other non-current financial liabilities are determined by using DCF method using
discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the seporting period. The own non-performance tisk as at March 31, 2025 was
assessed to be insignificant

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

(i) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Trade receivables 1,404.55 - - 1,404 55
Cash and cash equivalents 180.28 - - 180.28
Other financial assets 1,034.63 - - 1,034,63

(ii) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2024
Level | Level 2 Level 3
Trade receivables 1,338.79 - - 1,338.79
Cash and cash equivalents 4739 - - 4739
Other financial assets 1,036.04 - - 1,036.04




(iiii) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non current & current
Borrowings 774.03 - 774.03
Lease Liabilities 815.82 - 815.82
Other financial liabilities 1,782.35 - 1,782.35
Trade payebles 2,239.43 - 2,239.43
(iv) Quantitative discl of fair value bierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Bomowings 1,898.61 - 1,898.61
Lease Liabilities 926.53 - 926.53
Other financial liabilities 1,503.08 - 1,503.08
Trade pavables 1.263.59 - 1,263.59

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Fi ial risk bjectives and policies
The Company's has instituted an overall risk management programme which also focuses on the unprediclability of financial markels and seeks 10 minimize potenlial adverse effects
on the Company's financial performance The Corporate Finance department, evaluates financial risks in close co-operalion with the various stakeholders
The Company is exposed lo capilal risk, markel risk, credit risk and liquidity risk These risks are managed pro-actively by the Senior Management of the Company, duly supported
by various Groups and Commiltees
k
The Company's objective when managing capilal is to safeguard its ability Lo conlinue as a going concem in order lo provide relums lo its shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to provide for sufficient capital expansion, The capital siruclure of the Company consisls of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 15, cash and
cash equivalents disclosed in note 10 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial posilion
b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will nol be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due The Company employees prudent liquidity risk management practices
which inter alia means maintaining sufficient cash and markelable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credil facililies Given the nature
of the underlying businesses, the corporate finance maintains fexibility in funding by maintaining availabilily under committed credit lines and this way liquidity risk is mitigated by
the availability of funds 1o cover future commitments. Cash flow forecasls are prepared not only for (he entities bul the Group as a whole and he utilized borrowing facilities are
monitored on a daily basis and there is adequate focus on good management practices whereby the collections are managed efficiently. The Company while borrowing funds for large
capital project, i the rep: hedule in such a manner that these match with the generation of cash on such investment. Longer ferm cash [low forecasts are updated
from time to (ime and reviewed by the Investment and Performance Review Committee of the Board
The table below represents the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities at lhe end of March 31, 2025 based on contraclual undiscounted payments :-
March 31, 2024
h31.20 01 Years | 1-5Years | MOTERARS | gy
Yeanx

Interest bearing borrowings 1,284 25 - - 1,284,25
Trade payable 577.61 1,990.89 - 2.568.50
Oiher financial liabilities 801 71 - - 80171
% to Total 57.23%) 42.77%!| 0.00% 100.00%
|March 31, 2025
Interest bearing borrowings 757.89 - - 757.89
Trade pavable 211800 12143 - 2.239.43
Other financial liabilities 24724 - - 24724
% to Total 96.26%, 3.74% 0.00% 100.00%
Credil Risk is the risk (hal the counter party will not meet ils obligation under a financial instrument or cuslomer conlract, leading to a financial lose, The Company i exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activilies, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments
(i) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and conlrol relating to credit risk M
evaluate credit risk relaling 10 cusiomers on an ongoing basis Receivable control D assesses (he credit quality of Ihe customer, taking inlo account ils
financial position, pasl experience and olher factors The Company provides credit to individuals on exceplmnal basis only  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date on an individual basis
(ii) Financial instrumen(s and cash deposit
Credit risk from balances wilh banks and financial institulions is managed by the Company's (reasury depariment in accordance with the Company's policy. Invesiments of surplus
funds are made in bank deposils and other risk free securilies The limits are sel to minimize the concentralion of risks and (herefore mitigale financial loss through counter party's
potential failure 10 make payments Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low
credil risk due to good credif ratings assigned to the Company.
The Company's maximum exposure to credil risk for the components of the balance sheel al March 31, 2025 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in nole 31 and the liquidity table
above
d) Market risk
Market risk is the risk thal the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel prices. Markel prices comprises (hree types of risk:
currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price tisk and commodity price risk, Financial insiruments affected by markel risks include loans and
borrowings, deposits, invesiments and foreign currency receivables and payables The sensilivity analyses in the following sections relale to the position as al March 31 2025 The
analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of graluity and other post-reti bl provisions; and the fi | assets and
liabilities The sensilivity of the relevant Profit and Loss ilem is the effect of Ihe assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabililies held as of March 31, 2025
(e) Interest mte risk
Tnlerest rale is the risk that (he fair value or future cash flows of a financial insirument will fluctuale because of changes in market interes! rates The Company's exposure lo the risk
of changes in market interes! rates relales primarily to the Company's long ferm debt obligation at fixed interest rate

(Rs_ In Lacs)

(s, 7n Jack)
Year Incrense/decrease in interest rate Effect on profit before tax
Murch 31, 2025 0,504 3157
Murch 31, 2024 0504 G4y

- 51
| L

|This space has been intentionally left blank]
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33. Related party disclosures

Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not

Holding Company Max Estates Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Company Max Towers Private Liniled
Max 1 Limited

Max Squate Linmited

Pharmax Corporation Limited

Max Estates 128 Private Limited

Max Estates Gurgaon Limited

Acreage Builders Private Limited

Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited

Max Estates Noida Private Limited ( Formerly known as Astiki Realty
Private Limited)

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Directors and Key management personnel

Mr, Kishansingh Ramsinghaney (Director)
Mr. Rishi Raj (Director)
Mr. Venkatraman (Director) (w.e.f. 1st Feb' 23)

Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person or entities where
person has significantly influence or entities where person having
control is Key Management personnel

Max Ventures Private Limited

Max India Limited

Max Life Insurance Co. Limited
Vanavastra Private Limited

Antara Senior Living Limited

Max Financial Services Limited
Riga Foods LLP

Routes 2 Roots

Max Financial Services Limited
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd
Tophne Electronics Private Limited
Dixon Technologies (India) Limited
Max Learning Ventures Limited




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

33. (a) Details of transactions with related parties

(R, in lncs)
S.No |[Nature of transaction Particulars For;‘;’;?;;:g;: Fnr;[l;er:':;rl,e::;:
| Reimbursement of Expenses (Paid)  [Max Estates Limited 2935 436
Riga Foods LLP 0.00 216

Mr. Rohit Rajput (Director) 0.00 0.40

Antara Senior Living Limited 0,08 0.00

Vana Enterprises Limited 0.00 239

Max India Limited 1.03 0.00

Routes 2 Roots {0.01) 0.00

Total 30.45 9.31

2 Revenue from Maintenance Charges |Max Estates Limited 8377 45.69
Antara Senior Living Limited 031 29.78

Max India Limlted 016 28,83

Routes 2 Roots 8.02 874

Max Towers Private Limited 2479 2773

Max Fi ial Services Limited 6.17 19,88

Dixon Technologies (India) Limited 56,05 4,37

Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd 0,00 578

Total 179.27 171.30

Revenue from Auditorium Rental

3 antl Food Charges Antara Senior Living Limited 0.02 0.50
Acreage Builders Private Limited 038 032

Antara Assisted Care Services Limited 0.00 225

Routes 2 Roots 0.00 0.19

Max Estates Limited 3.39 12.78

Max Square Limited 284 0.79

Max Estates 128 Private Limited 0.57 9.86

Max Towers Private Limited 233 225

Max India Foundation 000 0.38

Max India Limited 000 134

Topline Electronics Private Limited 0.00 0.75

Rlga Foods LLP 0.00 1.12

Max Financial Services Limited 0.70 0.70

Max Estates Gurgaon Limited 032 0.00

Dixon Technologies (India) Limited 10.32 0.00

Total 20.87 33.23

4 Revenue from Electricity Charges Max Estates Limited 2947 25.09
Antara Senior Living Limited 0.00 6.49

Max Towers Private Limited 7.02 838

Pharmax Corporation Limited 13 41 6.26

Max India Limited 003 5.83

Routes 2 Roots 345 365

Max Learning Ventures Limited 4.68 433

Max Financial Services Limited 122 5.07

Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd 0.00 097

Dixon Technologies (India) Limited 321

‘Total 62.49 66.07

§ Revenue from Rental Routes 2 Roots 0.00 0.00
‘Total 000 0.00

6 Revenue from Access Card Max Estales Limited 0.14 0.00
Max India Limited 0.01 0.00

Routes 2 Roots 0.00 0.00

Total 0.15 0.00

T Revenue from Miscellaneous Charges| Topline Electronics Private Limited 0.00 803
Max Estates Limited 0.00 (1.44)

Max Life Insurance Company Limited 0.00 0.55

Max Speciality Films Limited 0.00 (0.34)

Max Square Limited 0.00 (0.05)

Routes 2 Roots 0.01 0.00

Anlara Senior Living Limited 000 003

Riga Foods LLP 1.17 0.00

Max Estates 128 Private Limited 0.00 19.76

Total 1.19 26.54

L] Munpower Supply New Delhi House Services Ltd 3085 1742
Total 30.85 17.42

9 | Donation Paid Max Tndia Foundalion 000 50.00
Total 0.00 50.00

10 Security Deposit received Topline Electronics Private Limited 000 000
Total 0.00 0.00




Securily Deposit Paid / (Refund Topline Electronics Private Limited 0.00 10.56
Moy Estates Limited (21.90) 10.61
Pharmax Coiporation Limited 0.00 10,61
Max Square Limited 0.00 317.97
Mox India Limited (7.87) .00
Antara Senior Living Limited (7.87) 0.00
Roules 2 Roots NS
Tutal (37.52) 340,75
Interest on Unsecured Loan Max Estates Limited 90 .05 149,42
Toial 99.08 149,42
Loan taken Max Estates Limited 230,00 AR5.00
M 230.00 385.00
Rent Paid Max Towers Privite Limited 21.45 59 85
Max Estates Limited 56.20 04,63
Pharmi Corporation Limited 150.11 O4.63
Total 217.85 259.11
Loan taken repald back Max Estates Limited #51.34 109957
|Max Towers Private Limited 2.55 0.00
Total R53.R9 1099,57
Other Facility Management Exp M foods LLP 798 000
Antara Assisted Care Services Limited 1122 0,00
Max Towers Private Limited 100,84
Mux Estates Limited 62.94
Pharmax Corporation Limited 70.79
Pharmax Corporation Limited 21.84
Max Squate Limited (275.11) (138.96)
Max Square Limited 137.89
Total 138,36 (138.96)




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

33. (b) Balances outstanding at year end
(Rs. in lacs)
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Trade receivables/(Trade Payables) |Max Estates Limited (incl. reimbursement) 69.62 35.61
Antara Senior Living Limted 0.00 543
Max Financial Services Limited 6.03 1588
Max India Limited 0.01 7.83
Max Life Insurance Company Limited - -
Max Towers Private Limited 0.83 1.09
Max Speciality Films Limited - -
Max Square Limited 165.67 -
Routes 2 Roots 1.11 0.65
Max Learning Ventures Limited 0.38 1.92
RIGA Foods LLP 0.59 024
Topline Electronics India Private Limited - -
Max Estates 128 Private Limited 0.24 -
Pharmax Corporation Ltd 9.50 -
Acreage Builders Private Limited 0.82 0.38
Max I Limited 0.15 -
New Delhi House Services Limited (0.48) -
Max Estates Limited (148.92) 21.04
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd - 421
Antara Assisted Care Services Limited (0.21) 1.64
Antata Purukul Senior Living Limited 7.62 -
Pharmax Corporation Ltd - 7.39
Max Towers Private Limited (0.58) (1.18)
Max Estates Limited (119.61) (114.51)
Max Estates 128 Private Limited - 22.66
Total (7.23) 10.27
2 |Security Deposit received Max Estates Limited - 21.90
Max India Limited - 7.87
Topline Electronics India Private Limited - -
Max Financial Services Limited 5.03 5.03
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd 1.58 1.58
Antara Senior Living Limited - 7.87
Routes 2 Roots 1.65 1.65
Vanavastra Private Limited - -
Total 8.26 45.90
3 Security Deposit given Max Towers Private Limited - 311.38
Max Estates Limited - 70.26
Pharmax Corporation Limited 146.58 70.26
Max Square Limited 609.46 317.97
Total 756.04 769.87
4 Loan outstanding Max Estates Limited 745.49 1.280.24
Max Towers Private Limited - -
Total 745.49 1,280.24
5 Compulsory Convertible Debentures |Max Estates Limited 2.214.00 2.214.00
Max I Limited 2.232.00 2.232.00
Total 4,446.00 4,446.00
Interest on Unsecured Loan
6 outstanding Max Estates Limited - 608.02
Total - 608.02

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
a) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions

b) There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables
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34, Capital Management

For Lhe purpose of the Contpany’s capilal management, capital includes issued equity atiri (o the equity shareholders of the Company, share premium and all other equity
reserves. The primary objective of the Company®s capilal management is Lhat il maimain an efficient capital structure and maximize the shareholder value. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in i itions and (he requi of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, The

Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital o shareholders or issuc new shares. The Company monitors capilal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by (otal capital plus nel debt. The Company includes within net debl, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding
discontinued operations

(s, in bicy)
Asat Anat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Reason for variance®
Borrowings 75789 1,89227
Trede payables 2,23943 1,263 59  During the period company has repaid a portion
Less: Cash and Cash cquivalents (180.28) “7.39) of its oulstanding debl
Net Debl 281704 3,108 47
Equity (1740860 (1,903 459 Company earned profil and transferred (o
Total Equity 11, T46.56) (1,903, 4%) retained earnings
Tolal Capital and nel debt 1,070.19 1,204.9% The gearing ralio improved due (o the company's
Gearing ratio -161% -163%% preofitibility s partlal repaymest of iis
outstanding debl
Cos A%sc! " 1,668.49 131378 The current eatfo nproved as o resull of loan
Cuurent Liability 3,329 55 3,610 58 aaaly DB eSS E ra
Current Ratio 0.50 0.36
Debt 75789 1,892 27 B q
s : d iLs debt and I
Shareholder Equity (1,746.56) (1503.4y) Company has ] Wsiu.:’" LR
Debt-Equity Rutio 043 A1.5%
E‘; mg Exailblelondebtiervies :;; 32 ;:: :g The company generales sufficient eamings lo
N ! . cover its inlerest obligalions and operate its
Principal 75789 1,892 27 busitiess smoothly
Debt Services Coverage Ratio 062 033
Net Income (annual) 143,99 (4,495.89) AR q
al
Sharcholder Equity (1,746.86) {Lgosqy  Crhanced P"’“ﬁgﬁ:’f‘d benercap
Return on Equity Ratio B24% -236.19%
Cosl of Goods sold/sale NA NA
Avemage inventory NA NA
Inventory Turnover Ratlo NA NA
Net Credil Sale NA NA
Average Trade Receviable NA NA
Trade Recetvables Turnover Ratlo NA NA
Net Credit Purchase NA NA
Average Trade payable NA NA
Trade Payable Turnover Rath NA NA
?ve;:u{\:gua(l:as::zlkeveme fronQpemtion Tfj? i?’ ;'ng 22 Company efTiciently ulilising ils working capilal
L ha Lk i’
Net CapHtal Turnover Ratio 2K0.44%, SN B N bt i
Net Profit 200 166,27 : n
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 4,558 24 109500 Company las pd‘::i:?e':l:‘_m :‘::;andmg Laus
Net Profit Ratlo 130% 537% B e
2:?:;;;’:;:;“[ and tax (EBIT) ::::E itz\: 1‘: During the period company has repaid a portion
3.8 168,51 A ing short term b 4
Return on Capilal employed TLI2% 144K, Chiioust S M adinh
Profil (PAT) 14399 4,495 89
Investment 83,59 InE_S5 Due 1o deferred lax asset
Return on Investmen( 21.06% =1210.00%

35.  DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT
(MSMED) ACT, 2006
The Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises have been identified by the Compaity from the available information, which has been relled upon by the auditors. According te such
identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act. 2006’ are as follows:

(Rs. In lacs)
Asal Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to amy supplier
- Principal amount 94.45 24.02
- Interest thereon Nil Nil
ii) The anwunt of interest paid by the buyer in lenns of section 13_ along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day Nil Nit
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for Lhe year of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but wilhout adding the interest specified under this act
Nil Nil
iv) The amount of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nil
v) The amount of further interest remaining dite and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
‘when Lhe interest dues above are actually paid to Lhe small investor. Nil Nil

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identificd on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the slalus of suppliers
under (he MSMED
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36. 1) The Company does not have any Benami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Bepami property.
ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iii) The Company does nol have any transactions with struck-off companies.

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year,

v} During the year the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (I diaries) with the und ding
that the Intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manser whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
b) Provide any guarnntee, security or the like an bebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi) During the year the Company have not received any fund from any person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indireetly lend or invest in othet personis of éntities identifisd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

viii) The Company has used ting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all rel tr i ded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access rights to
the application. Further no instance of audit irail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software. being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting
software.

ix) Other discl requil of Schedule IIT of Companies Act, 2013 are not applizcble to the company.
37, Previous year numbers have been regrouped/ reclassified, wh idered y.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Asset Services Limited
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